ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 21, 2007
1:34 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 84

"An Act relating to the burning capability of cigarettes being
sold or offered for sale, or possessed for sale; relating to
conpliance certifications by tobacco product manufacturers, a
directory of tobacco product manufacturers, the affixing of
stanps to cigarette packages, and cigarette tax stanps; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 84

SHORT TITLE: TESTI NG & PACKAG NG OF Cl GARETTES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

02/ 14/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 07 (S) L&C, JUD, FIN

02/ 27/ 07 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 27/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 07 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 06/ 07 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 06/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB 84(L&C) Qut of Committee
03/ 06/ 07 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 07/ 07 (S) L&C RPT CS 3DP INR 1AM NEW TI TLE
03/ 07/ 07 (S) DP: ELLIS, DAVIS, STEVENS

03/ 07/ 07 (S) NR. HOFFMAN

03/ 07/ 07 (S) AM  BUNDE

03/ 21/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2007



W TNESS REG STER

Senat or Donal d O son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 84

Deni se Liccioli, Staff

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PGCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided informati on on SB 84

Ray Bazal, Western Regi onal Manager
National Fire Protection Association
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 84

Warren Cunmm ngs, President

Al aska Fire Chiefs Association and

Fai r banks Fire Chief

Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 84

Rusty Bel anger
State Fire Marsha
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 84

Pat Eggers

Al aska State Firefighters Association

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 84

Bob Evans, Lobbyi st
for Altria Corporation
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of SB 84

Em |y Neenan, Director,

Al aska Government Rel ations

Aneri can Cancer Society

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Said the ACS has no objection to SB 84

Theresa Banni ster, Legislative Counsel
D vision of Legal and Research Services
Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, AK

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 21,

2007



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Highlighted issues related to SB 84

Johanna Bal es, Excise Audit Manager

Tax Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Hi ghlighted DOR obligations related to SB
84

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34:05 PM Present at the call to
order were Senator Huggins, Senator W el echowski , Senat or
McGQuire, Senator Therriault, and Chair French.

SB  84- TESTI NG & PACKAG NG OF Cl GARETTES

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consi derati on of CSSB 84(L&C).

1:34:21 PM

SENATOR COLSON, Sponsor of SB 84, introduced his staff nenber,
Denise Licctoli and then he read the sponsor statenment into the
record as foll ows:

SB 84 mandates that only self-extinguishing cigarettes
can be sold in Al aska, and establishes the testing and
certification requirenents to assure that only self-
extinguishing cigarettes are sold in Alaska. Although
no cigarette could ever be called safe, so called
self-extinguishing or “fire safe” cigarettes are
reduced ignition propensity cigarettes. These are
cigarettes that are designed to be less likely than a
conventional cigarette to ignite soft furnishings such
as a couch or mattress. The bill also provides for the
marking of cigarette packaging in an approved and
easily identifiable manner to indicate they are fire
saf e.

Cigarettes are the leading cause of hone fire
fatalities in Alaska and the United States. The nost
coormon material first ignited in hone fires are
mattresses and bedding, upholstered furniture, and
fl oor coverings. A typical scenario for fires is when
a |lit cigarette is forgotten or dropped by a snoker.
The cigarette fire can snolder for hours before it
flares up into a full blaze.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2007



One fourth of wvictinmse of snoking-material fire
fatalities are not the snoker whose cigarette started
the fire; over one third of these are children. The
risk of dying in a residential structure fire caused
by snoking rises wth age: 38 percent of fatal
snoki ng-material-fire victins are age 65 or ol der.

The  nost common technol ogy used by cigarette
manuf act urers for reduced cigarette ignition
propensity (RCIP) is to nake the paper thicker in
places to slow down a burning cigarette. If such a
cigarette is left wunattended, when the burn reaches

one of the thicker places or “speed bunps”, the
bur ni ng will sel f - exti ngui sh. Sel f - exti ngui shi ng
cigarettes neet established fire safety performance
st andards.

Legislation simlar to SB 84 has been enacted in New
York, Massachusetts, Ver nont New Hanpshire,
California, and Illinois. A fire safe <cigarette
mandat e has al so been approved for all of Canada. This
legislation is supported by the Alaska Fire Chiefs
Associ ation, the Al aska Firefighters Association, and
Depar t ment of Public Safety, D vision of Fire
Preventi on.

SB 84 will save lives, as well as reduce injuries and
damage to property in Al aska.

SENATOR OLSON expl ained that part of his interest in the bill
stens fromhaving treated children who were fire victimns.

1:38: 11 PM
CHAI R FRENCH opened public testinony.

RAY BAZAL, Western Regional Manager for the National Fire
Protection Association, spoke in support of SB 84. He relayed
that 6 states have passed simlar legislation and 22 others are
in the process of doing so nmeaning that one quarter of the US
popul ation is now protected by this law Statistics from New
York indicate that in the six nonths after the |law was passed
there was no reduction in cigarette tax revenue, but there was a
one third reduction in fire fatalities and an even higher
reduction in the nunber of fires. “Passing this bill wll
absolutely save lives in Alaska and reduce injuries to people,
to firefighters, and reduce property damage.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2007



1:41: 31 PM

WARREN CUMM NGS, President, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association and
Fai rbanks Fire Chief, spoke in support of SB 84. He reported
that in the last 10 years there have been 37 cigarette caused
fire fatalities in Al aska. Snokers aren’t the only ones to die
in these fires: 34 percent are children of the snokers, 25
percent are neighbors or friends of the snokers, 14 percent are
spouses or partners, and 13 percent are the parents of the
snokers. In the 1980s it was predicted that self extinguishing
cigarettes would elimnate 3 out of 4 cigarette fire deaths. If
cigarette manufacturers had been producing only those cigarettes
since that time, approximately 15,000 lives would have been
saved throughout the US. This is good |egislation he said.

1:43: 50 PM
RUSTY BELANGER, Acting Director, D vision of Fire Prevention,
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS), spoke in support of SB 84

The bill enbodies the division’s mssion statenment to prevent
the loss of Ilife and property from fire and explosion. As
previously nmentioned, 27 lives and $8 million in property has

been lost in the last 10 years as a result of fires that started
with a cigarette as the ignition source. The division believes
that the nunber of fire related deaths in Al aska will be reduced
if cigarette manufacturers are required to neet the new safety
standards set forth in SB 84. He urged the comrittee to support
t he issue.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how many cigarette related fires are
attributable to roll your own type snoking materi al

MR. BELANGER said he could try and get that information, but it
m ght not be broken down that way. The division |ooks at those
fires as having been caused by unattended snoking materials.

SENATOR HUGE NS said he wants to nmake sure that the bill really
woul d fix somet hi ng.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Belanger to send the information via
email if he finds it broken down that way.

MR. BELANGER agr eed.

1:47: 38 PM
PAT EGGERS, First Vice-President, Alaska State Firefighters
Associ ation, described SB 84 as huge legislation that will save

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2007



lives. He informed nenbers that a great deal of relevant
information is available on the firesafe.org website.

1:48: 42 PM

BOB EVANS, Lobbyist for Altria Corporation, said that for
several years the parent conpany, Philip Mrris USA, has worked
with the national firefighters to develop legislation that would
address the safety issue and also provide business consistency
for Altria Corporation. In an ideal world Congress would provide
a single uniform standard, but because that’s unlikely to happen
any time soon PMUSA has been working with firefighters and
legislatures in different states to make this bill happen. M
client supports this bill as drafted, he stated.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted the nmenorandum in the packet from
M chael White and asked if he is a corporate attorney for
Altria.

MR. EVANS expl ained that he and M. Wite are partners at Patton
Boggs, LLP. M. Wiite has been retained by Arnold & Porter, LLP
to address the delegation issue. That legal entity is outside
counsel to Legislative Council.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted his finding that the |egislature has
the authority to pass this |aw

MR. EVANS said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if there is any sort of preenption
i ssue.

MR. EVANS said he isn't award of any, but he would defer to M.
Wi te.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if there m ght be an issue of underground
mar ket cigarettes if this legislation were to pass.

MR. EVANS said he didn't know for sure, but he understands there
is no difference in taste so that wouldn’t be a contributing
factor. To the extent that there is already an underground
mar ket, he suspects it wuld be the sane. This wouldn't
necessarily increase it.

CHAI R FRENCH asked for clarification that there is no economc
incentive to select one type over another.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2007



MR. EVANS said that’s correct; there is no econonic advantage
what soever .

CHAIR FRENCH added that there could be cigarettes that don’'t
have a tax stanp, but tax is an entirely different issue.

MR. EVANS agreed conpl etely.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if self extinguishing cigarettes
woul d require the user to inhale nore deeply.

MR. EVANS said he doesn’t know, but he's been told there are no
i ncreased health i ssues.

1:53: 57 PM

EM LY NEENAN, Alaska Governnment Relations Director for the
American Cancer Society, said SB 84 doesn't affect the mssion
to prevent cancer one way or the other. Responding to a previous
guestion she said that a colleague from New York told her that
snokers do not have to inhale nore deeply to keep a cigarette
lit. Although she doesn’t have any docunentation, that is what
folks in the health field are saying.

As an aside she said she prefers to call these cigarettes self
extingui shing rather than fire safe because she doesn't like to
use safe and cigarette in the sane sentence.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d the nonmencl ature i s noted.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he would like to find out if these
cigarettes require deeper inhalation because that woul d endanger
t housands of users in the state. “... that’s a judgnent call or
certainly a fact that I want to be aware of,” he said.

MS. NEENAN said she doesn’'t believe that's an issue, but she
woul d provide nore information.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if she knows the percentage of the rol
your own fraternity.

M5. NEENAN said she would try to provide that information, but
her general sense is it’s a pretty small percentage.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said as nuch as he dislikes tobacco snoking,

he’d hate for the next step to be a prohibition on roll your own
because they aren’t self extinguishing.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 21, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH asked what makes a cigarette self extinguishing
conpared to one that <continues to burn when it’'s left
unat t ended.

IVB. NEENAN said she wunderstands that self extinguishing
cigarettes have bands in the paper that don't burn if the
cigarette isn’'t actively snoked.

JOANNA BAI LS, Departnent of Revenue (DOR), advised that DOR wil|
have sone enforcenent obligations.

CHAI R FRENCH asked her to describe DOR s role should the bill
becone | aw.

M5. BAILS said the DOR fiscal note addresses the commttee
substitute that Senator O son was going to offer.

2:00: 19 PM

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked her for bringing that to his attention and
asked for a notion to adopt Version \O commttee substitute
(CS).

SENATOR HUGGE NS notioned to adopt Version \O CS for SB 84,
| abel ed 25-LS0596\ 0O, as the working docunent. There was no
obj ecti on.

M5. BAILS said she understands that the CS renoves bill sections
dealing with a DOR maintained directory. DOR believes that wth
that change it wll have to maintain an additional directory
listing cigarettes that are approved for sale in the state and
the fiscal note reflects that cost. DOR expects it will need at
|l east a part-time person to maintain the separate directory and
educat e taxpayers on the difference between the two directories.

She elaborated that as part of the Tobacco Master Settlenent
Agreenent the state passed legislation requiring DOR to maintain
a directory that identifies cigarettes that are either conpliant
with the nmaster settlenent agreenment or conpliant with an escrow
statute that was adopted under Title 45. Because the naster
settlement is so conplex, it is best not to change the existing
directory and instead maintain a separate directory for the self
extinguishing cigarettes. DOR would need to educate retailers
about which brands neet both the self extinguishing and the MSA
standards. That is where the additional costs cone from

M5. BAILS added that based on the language in the bill, every
three years manufacturers would be required to pay a $250 fee

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 21, 2007



for each cigarette brand that is certified in the state. Up to
1,000 different brands could be certified, which would nore than
cover the expected annual cost of about $40, 000.

2:03: 33 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he could understand sonme one-tinme costs,
but he doesn’t believe that the year after year expenses justify
a half-tinme position.

VB. BALES explained that the ongoing expenses include:
mai ntaining the new directory; cross referencing the master
settlement and the self extinguishing cigarette directories;
i nvestigation activity to ensure t hat only t he sel f
extinguishing cigarettes are stanped; seizing and destroying
cigarettes; and addressing potential |egal costs.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he would leave it to the finance
committee, but he believes that a lot of those expenses are
included in the ordinary business of the state.

2:06: 11 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said he would Ilike to discuss the 3/19/07
menor andum that M. Bannister issued. He asked her to describe
how the bill intersects with the interstate conmerce cl ause.

THERESA BANNI STER, Legislative Counsel, explained that bringing
cigarettes to Alaska from another state places a burden on
interstate commerce and the US Constitution prohibits that if it

goes too far. Thus, the question will be whether the burden is
clearly excessive on the commerce that is going back and forth
versus the benefit that will be reaped. “lI don’t have enough
information to be able to evaluate that, but | wanted to bring

it up as an issue,” she stated.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if she did any research into whether a
tobacco conpany had ever challenged a simlar bill in another
state on those grounds.

M5. BANNI STER replied she had not.

CHAI R FRENCH asked her to address her observations in the bil
wWith respect to civil penalties.

M5. BANNI STER explained that the legislature can inpose civi

rather than crimnal penalties to regulate activity that 1is
addressed in statute. However, if the penalty is too high, then
it mght be interpreted that the legislature actually thought

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 21, 2007



the activity was crimnal. In that case all the protections that
accrue to a crimnal penalty would accrue to the civil penalty.

To a large degree the court wll defer to the legislature
finding that it is a civil penalty, but you mnmust keep that in
mnd. Also keep in mnd that the court will evaluate the size of

the penalty for the particular situation. She really didn't have
any idea what penalty 1is appropriate in this particular
situation, she said.

CHAIR FRENCH asked her to articulate any observations and
concerns in the bill with respect to del egati on.

M5. BANNI STER explained that the legislature can delegate its
authority to nmake regulations to nenbers of the executive branch
as long as it provides guidelines, otherwise it is an inproper
del egation of authority. In this case the effect is that in
three sections of the bill the delegation of legislative
authority is to follow what New York | aw does. The question that
arises is whether or not in that particular situation the
| egislature is exceeding its authority. A reason underlying the
issue is the concern that the people won’'t have an opportunity
to comment or get notice of any changes in New York |aw The
court has stated that concern in the past, she said.

M5. BANNI STER said the federal government doesn’'t pay attention
to the delegation issue, but Alaska seens to allow sone
del egation by reference to anmended federal laws and it also
mentions sonme private organi zations regarding a building code
Because the language is there and the concept of delegating or
allowing another state’'s activities to affect what this state
does is unusual, and because it isn't clear what the court wll
do it is an issue that the |legislature ought to be aware of, she
st at ed.

2:14: 49 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked why |anguage simlar to the New York
law isn’t witten in to the statute now.

MS. BANNI STER said she doesn’t know why that hasn’t been done
but she feels that the idea is to capture decisions that are
made in the future. In particular Section 18.74.220 says that
the New York standards shall be persuasive authority. “I see it
as enbodyi ng future decisions,” she said.

SENATOR  THERRI AULT sai d he under st ands t hat cigarette
manufacturers are looking for —consistency, which is not

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 21, 2007



forthcom ng from Congress so the suggestion to refer to just one
state’s law i s reasonabl e.

CHAIR FRENCH said he too senses the tension; it seens odd to
make explicit reference to New York laws and delegate the
deci sion meking to that body.

SENATOR McGUI RE suggested the conmittee replace the word “shall”
with “may” on page 9, line 12. That way the record reflects that
this | egi sl ature is | ooki ng for consi st ency for t he
manuf act ur es.

2:17:53 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated the opinion that section 220 is
probably wunconstitutional. “If we want to use the New York
statute then we should probably just put that in here,” he
st at ed.

SENATOR MGUI RE asked the sponsor why adopting the New York
nodel isn’'t preferable to specifically referencing it in an
i npl enentati on cl ause.

2:18: 43 PM
CHAI R FRENCH advi sed that M. VWhite would be the next w tness.

SENATOR OLSON said he’d like to hear from the next wtness
before explaining why the bill is crafted a specific way.

MCHAEL D. WHITE ESQ, Partner, Patton Boggs, LLP, said their
client is Altria Corporate Services, Inc, parent conpany of
Phillip Morris USA (PMJUSA). His firm was asked to ook at this
legislation focusing in particular on the issues that
Legi slative Counsel raised regarding the potential issue of
unconsti tuti onal del egati on. Revi ew of the statutes and
authorities unequivocally indicates that there is no del egation
problem thus no constitutional problem he stated.

He referenced the March 20, 2007 nenorandum and said he would
touch on two major points. First, the delegation issue may have
been a concern 60 years ago, but since that tine the courts have
routinely upheld this type of legislation. Although it is true
that there is the concept in the |aw regardi ng del egation, what
it means now is there can’t be conpl ete abdication of authority.
Clearly government wouldn't work if legislators couldn't
del egate work to other branches of governnent to do regul ations
and other daily business natters as part of state, l|ocal and
federal government.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 21, 2007



MR WH TE said case law that interprets the statutes makes it
clear that since the ‘60s, other than the extrenely Ilarge
del egation of authority giving the governor the discretion to
rewite the budget, every challenge based on a delegation has
been rejected by Al aska courts.

The specific exanples in Sections 18.74.040 (b), 18.74.120 (b),
and 18.74.220 show that legislative authority is delegated to
the fire marshal to inplenment decisions to do his or her job by
making the authority from New York a deciding or persuasive
factor. Those standards are the ones that are necessary for the
fire marshal to do the job. “There is no unlawful delegation
because the court has said there is a sliding scale analysis.

The broader the delegation - i.e. the <closer you get to
abdication - the nore scrutiny the court wll give that
del egation.” Fur t her nor e, he said, i f this is unlawful

del egation then a good portion of the laws the |egislature has
passed would be unlawful delegations. That includes the Al aska
Wage and Hour Act, federal tax laws, antitrust |aws, and various
probate laws. In those the legislature has inplicitly adopted
| aws fromother jurisdictions as binding upon the state.

2:23:52 PM

SENATOR WELECHOANSKI said he doesn’'t have a big problem
del egating authority to the fire marshal, but he does have a
probl em del egating to what is done in another state. Noting that
all the references for delegations listed in the neno are to
federal code, he asked if any Al aska l|legislation directs use of
another state’s | aw as a persuasive authority.

MR WHTE clarified that it doesn’t matter that the del egation
references are to federal code rather than another state’ s code,
because both are foreign governnents wth respect to the
legislative authority that exists wunder State of Al aska
sovereignty. He further explained that there are a nunber of
uniform acts that are not federal legislation such as the
Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act and the Uniform Probate
Code. Pronmul gated by an association, those laws seek a
nati onwi de uniform standard in an area that |acks uniformty.
Responding to the specific question, he said he is not famliar
with any specific reference to a state law other than the fact
that all Alaska |law is based on Oregon |aw and hi s understandi ng
is that it would not be inappropriate for the Al aska Legislature
to adopt by reference sonething in Oregon statute.

2:26: 20 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 21, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH asked if he is aware of any challenge of self
extinguishing cigarette legislation by Altria, PMJSA or any
tobacco conpany wth respect to the issue of interstate
commer ce.

MR. WHI TE said no; Altria supports the |egislation and would not
chal | enge any such | egislation on those grounds.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if he would <challenge this
| egislation on any grounds and if he foresees any federal
preenption issues here.

MR. VWHI TE said he couldn’t say because he doesn’t know what his
client is thinking, but in his mnd he can't see a challenge of
this type of law. Wth regard to preenption his understanding is
there is no federal law, thus there can be no preenption issue.
Congress could but has not regulated in this area so states are
free to do so.

CHAIR FRENCH asked about his client’s perspective on civil
penalties and whether it would be challenged as anounting to a
crimnal fine because of size and severity.

MR VWH TE reiterated he couldn’'t speak for Altria, but he does
not believe this would anbunt to an unlawful crim nal sanction -
particularly in light of the strong legislative intent that
t hese be civil penalties.

2:29:16 PM

CHAIR FRENCH stated his intention to hold the bill to finish
reviewing M. Wiite's legal nenorandum He asked the sponsor if
he had any further observations on the bill.

SENATOR OLSON said Ms. Licctoli had additional information.

2:30: 01 PM

DENISE LICCIOLl, Staff to Senator O son, said she has no |ega
background so deferring the delegation issue to this comrittee’s
expertise was intentional. Nonetheless, she can attest that the
manuf acturers believe that |acking federal regulation, it is
very inportant to establish nationw de uniformty.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if states with a simlar |law reference New

York law or enbed New York Jlaw in statute as Senator
W el echowski suggest ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 21, 2007



M5. LICCI QLI said the website referenced previously has nodel
| egislation as well as the laws fromthe states that have passed
this |egislation. Essentially all have adopted and nmade
reference to New York law. The nodel legislation is stronger
than what is suggested in SB 84.

SENATOR OLSON said he feels strongly about this issue and he
introduced the bill to affect the lives of those who have been
negatively affected in the past. As far as the concern about
having to inhale nore deeply, he said snokers have nade a
conscious choice. Children who are fire victins weren’'t there by
choice and were in fact expecting to be protected.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted the Departnent of Public Safety fisca
note for $83,000 per year and comrented that for years the fire
associ ati ons have been looking for a funding source simlar to
the Police Standards Council. It’s an annual appropriation, but
this could be an answer to a | ong-standi ng probl em

CHAIR FRENCH held SB 84 in commttee.
#

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:35:49 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 21, 2007



